1977

## Provo City v. Hubert C. Lambert et al : Brief of Defendants-Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

Action to review in part the decision of then State Engineer Hubert C. Lambert dated May 1, 1970 embodying his directive to defendant Hugh McKellar as Provo River Water Commissioner to deliver to plaintiff-respondent water from the Provo River under paragraph 4(c) of the "Provo River Decree" dated May 2, 1921 (Utah County Civil No. 2888) only when plaintiff-respondent could utilize the 16.5 second feet of water specified therein for a non-consumptive power use.

#### DISPOSITION BY STATE ENGINEER

In 1969, defendant Hugh A. McKellar, then Provo River Water Commissioner, was requested by Provo City to deliver the 16.5 c.f.s. of water under paragraph 4(c) of the "Provo River Decree" for use by Provo City for irrigation purposes, and Mr. McKellar refused. (R.8, 263; F.3, R.475). Opposition to the foregoing directive developed and a hearing thereon was conducted by the State Engineer on October 29, 1969 and additional studies were made by him. (R.8, 263; F.4, R.475). On May 1, 1970 the State Engineer amended the foregoing directive to deliver to Provo City the 16.5 c.f.s. of water only when Provo City could utilize the flow for non-consumptive use. (R.8, 263; F.4, R.475).

#### DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

This action was initially filed by plaintiff-respondent on June 26, 1970 to review the foregoing Decision of the State Engineer dated May 1, 1970. (R.4-10 incl.). The matter was thereafter submitted to the trial court in May, 1971, on mutual Motions for Summary Judgment with the Honorable Allen B. Sorensen, District Judge, presiding. (Defs' Motion - R.77-80 incl., 191; Pltf's Motion - R.122-128 incl.). Both motions were supported by documentation from the files of Civil No. 2888 (Defs' Docs. - R.81-121 incl., 132-137 incl.; Pltf's Docs. - R.150-187 incl.) which became the record in this case pursuant to stipulation of counsel at the pretrial conference held on April 16, 1971. (R.1576-1577).

Judge Sorensen denied plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment (R.193-195 incl.) and made and entered a Summary Judgment on August 16, 1971 in favor of defendants collectively affirming

the decision of defendant Hubert C. Lambert as State Engineer dated May 1, 1970 and adjudging that the award to plaintiff under paragraph 4(c) of the "Provo River Decree" was for power use only and shall be delivered to plaintiff only when it can utilize said flow for a non-consumptive power use. (R.196-198 incl.).

On September 14, 1971, plaintiff appealed to this Court from the Summary Judgment. (R.205, 206, 208, 209). On August 7, 1972 this Court issued its opinion (R.217, 217A, 218; 28 Utah 2d 194, 499 P.2d 1296) wherein it concluded and ordered as follows:

"It would seem to us that it would be helpful in making a proper determination and interpretation of what was intended by the language set forth in the "Provo River Decree" had the record contained some information as to what use, if any, the plaintiff had made of 16.50 second feet of water, since its use in the operation of the various mills has ceased. It is therefore ordered that this matter be remanded to the District Court with the recommendation that the court refer the matter to the State Engineer for a determination from the historical or other data, or from other investigation as to the use, if any, made of the water here in question." (R.217A).

On August 29, 1972 this Court remanded the case back to the District Court with the recommendation that the District Court refer the matter to the State Engineer for a determination from the historical or other data, or from other investigation as to the use, if any, made of the water here in question. (R.216). After hearing and on September 22, 1972 Judge Sorensen referred the case to the State Engineer for such determination as may be helpful in view of the Decision of the Supreme Court. (R.221).

Pursuant to the foregoing ruling, a hearing was conducted by the State Engineer concerning paragraph 4(c) of the "Provo River

Decree" and further investigations were made by him culminating in a "Report of the State Engineer to the Honorable Allen B. Sorensen, Judge," which was filed with the trial court on June 18, 1975 together with exhibits and the transcripts of the hearings conducted by the State Engineer. (Ex. D, E, F, R.585-910 inclusive).

Meanwhile in the court below, plaintiff filed a Motion To Amend Complaint (R.249, 250) which was granted, (R.288) and an Amended Complaint was filed. (R.254-267 incl.). Defendants then filed a Motion To Dismiss, Motion to Strike and Motion For More Definite Statement directed at the Amended Complaint (R.268-272 incl.) and plaintiff filed a Motion To Bifurcate and Render Summary Judgment. (R.290, 291). Plaintiff then filed a separate action in the District Court of Utah County being Civil No. 42,405 concerning the same subject matter wherein Motions To Dismiss were filed by defendants. (R.315, 316).

On July 22, 1975 Judge Sorensen on his own motion disqualified himself and the case was assigned to the Honorable Don V. Tibbs, Judge of the Sixth Judicial District. (R.316). All pending motions in both cases (Civil Nos. 34,701 and 42,405) were set for hearing before Judge Tibbs on September 6, 1975 and a comprehensive order was entered in both cases disposing of all pending motions. (R.336-339 incl.).

Judge Tibbs concluded that the trial court had jurisdiction in this case (Civil No. 34,701) and further concluded from the opinion of this Court filed herein on the 7th day of August, 1972 (R.217, 217A, 218) that the Summary Judgment made and entered by the trial court on the 16th day of August, 1971 was neither affirmed

nor reversed but that the matter was remanded to the trial court for an evidentiary hearing on the use, if any, the plaintiff has made of the 16.5 c.f.s. of water since its use in the operation of the various mills has ceased. (R.337). The end result was that this matter was set for trial for a factual determination from the historical or other data or from other investigation as to the use, if any, made of the water here in question. (R.339).

The evidentiary hearing was held before Honorable Don V. Tibbs, District Judge, sitting without a jury, on November 24-26, inclusive, and 28, 1975 (R.464-469 incl.) and was argued on December 11, 1975. (R.399). Plaintiff filed a motion to amend its Complaint (R.458-469 incl.) which was granted. (R.399).

On January 16, 1976 the trial court made and entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R.404-410 incl.) and Judgment. (R.411-413 incl.). Motions to amend Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment (R.415-420 incl.; 428-432 incl.) filed by defendants were granted in part. (R.483-485 incl.). A Motion For New Trial (R.433-435 incl.) was filed by defendants which was denied. (R.484). Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R.473-478 incl.) and Amended Judgment (R.479-481 incl.) were made and entered by the trial court on May 4, 1976 over the objections of defendants. (R.445-447 incl.; 482). On May 25, 1976 defendants filed their Notice of Appeal. (487-488).

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendants seek to set aside the Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in toto, reverse the Amended Judgment and affirm the Summary Judgment made and entered herein on the 16th day of August, 1971.

Decree" and further investigations were made by him culminating in a "Report of the State Engineer to the Honorable Allen B. Sorensen, Judge," which was filed with the trial court on June 18, 1975 together with exhibits and the transcripts of the hearings conducted by the State Engineer. (Ex. D, E, F, R.585-910 inclusive)

Meanwhile in the court below, plaintiff filed a Motion To Amend Complaint (R.249, 250) which was granted, (R.288) and an Amended Complaint was filed. (R.254-267 incl.). Defendants then filed a Motion To Dismiss, Motion to Strike and Motion For More Definite Statement directed at the Amended Complaint (R.268-272 incl.) and plaintiff filed a Motion To Bifurcate and Render Summary Judgment. (R.290, 291). Plaintiff then filed a separate action in the District Court of Utah County being Civil No. 42,405 concerning the same subject matter wherein Motions To Dismiss were filed by defendants. (R.315, 316).

On July 22, 1975 Judge Sorensen on his own motion disqualified himself and the case was assigned to the Honorable Don V. Tibbs, Judge of the Sixth Judicial District. (R.316). All pending motions in both cases (Civil Nos. 34,701 and 42,405) were set for hearing before Judge Tibbs on September 6, 1975 and a comprehensive order was entered in both cases disposing of all pending motions. (R.336-339 incl.).

Judge Tibbs concluded that the trial court had jurisdiction in this case (Civil No. 34,701) and further concluded from the opinion of this Court filed herein on the 7th day of August, 1972 (R.217, 217A, 218) that the Summary Judgment made and entered by the trial court on the 16th day of August, 1971 was neither affirmed

nor reversed but that the matter was remanded to the trial court for an evidentiary hearing on the use, if any, the plaintiff has made of the 16.5 c.f.s. of water since its use in the operation of the various mills has ceased. (R.337). The end result was that this matter was set for trial for a factual determination from the historical or other data or from other investigation as to the use, if any, made of the water here in question. (R.339).

The evidentiary hearing was held before Honorable Don V. Tibbs, District Judge, sitting without a jury, on November 24-26, inclusive, and 28, 1975 (R.464-469 incl.) and was argued on December 11, 1975. (R.399). Plaintiff filed a motion to amend its Complaint (R.458-469 incl.) which was granted. (R.399).

On January 16, 1976 the trial court made and entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R.404-410 incl.) and Judgment. (R.411-413 incl.). Motions to amend Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment (R.415-420 incl.; 428-432 incl.) filed by defendants were granted in part. (R.483-485 incl.). A Motion For New Trial (R.433-435 incl.) was filed by defendants which was ~~granted~~ (R.484). ~~Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law~~

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

To simplify the nomenclature herein, plaintiff-respondent will be referred to hereinafter as Provo City and defendants-appellants collectively will be referred to herein as defendants. Defendant

and Hubert C. Lambert and/or his successor Dee C. Hansen, as State Engineer of the State of Utah, will be referred to herein as State Engineer. Defendant Hugh McKellar as Provo River Water Commissioner, or his successor, will be referred to herein as River Commissioner. Other defendants-appellants individually will be referred to as defendant by name.

Since the transcript of the testimony in this case exceeds 400 pages, an Abstract of Testimony has been prepared by defendants pursuant to Rule 75(e) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and references thereto shall be designated herein as (A. ). References to the file shall be designated as (R.1-502 incl.) with the page designated by the number appearing in the very lower right hand corner as distinguished from the numbers 00003-00223 page designations in the prior appeal. References to the Amended Findings of Fact shall be designated (F. ), Amended Conclusions of Law (C. ) and Amended Judgment (J. ) and Exhibits (Ex. ).

The transcript of the proceedings in this case now comprises 6 volumes, ie. the transcript of the pretrial hearing held before Honorable Allen B. Sorensen, District Judge, on April 16, 1971 (R.1560-1578 incl.); the transcript of the hearings before the State Engineer (R.585-911 incl.); the pretrial proceedings before Honorable Don V. Tibbs, District Judge, on September 6, 1975 (R.504-585 incl.) and the transcript of the evidentiary hearing before the Honorable Don V. Tibbs, District Judge, (R.912-1559 incl.). References to the six transcripts shall be by page number only and designated as (R. ).

We believe it essential to a better understanding of this case to divide defendants' Statement of Facts into the following four categories, ie.

(1) General facts relating to the geographical locations of the Provo River and Utah Lake and the diversion of waters therefrom by the respective parties;

(2) Factual matters extracted from the Record in Utah County Civil No. 2888 (Provo River Decree) which are still a part of the Record and were before this Court on the prior appeal;

(3) Factual findings of State Engineer from investigations made pursuant to the referral of the District Court; and

(4) Factual matters from the evidentiary hearing in the District Court relating to the use made of the water here in question pursuant to the remand of the Court from the prior appeal.

In so doing, defendants will strive to comply with the time-honored rules of appellee review and state those facts in the light most favorable to the Amended Findings of Fact and Amended Judgment below.

A. General Statement of Facts Relating To Geographical Locations of Provo River and Utah Lake And Diversions Therefrom.

The Provo River originates in the Uintah Mountains near Bald Mountain and courses generally southwesterly through Summit, Wasatch and Utah Counties into Utah Lake. Deer Creek Reservoir, being a part of the Provo River Project, is constructed across the natural channel of the Provo River at the head of Provo Canyon in Wasatch County. The enlarged Provo Reservoir Canal has its point

of diversion at the Murdock Diversion Dam situated downstream from Deer Creek Reservoir and just above the mouth of Provo Canyon and conveys both natural flow Provo River water and Provo River project waters rediverted from Provo River.

Plaintiff diverts water from the Provo River below the mouth of Provo Canyon at two locations, ie.

(1) The City Race, Factory Race and East Union Canal, all divert water from a common canal which has its point of diversion from Provo River near the southwest corner of the Riverside Country Club (Ex. D, p.7,8) and downstream from the Murdock Diversion Dam, and

(2) The Tanner Race which has its point of diversion from Provo River near old Highway 91 west of the Utah Valley Hospital. All of the foregoing races and the East Union Canal have their terminus in the Provo Bay Area of Utah Lake. (Ex. D, p.7,8).

Defendant Provo River Water Users Association operates and maintains the Deer Creek Reservoir and the Provo Reservoir canal under contracts with defendant United States of America and diverts, stores and conveys natural flow Provo River waters and Provo River Project waters for use by its stockholders in both Salt Lake and Utah Counties. (Ex. I, R.1465, 1479). Defendant Provo Reservoir Water Users Company diverts natural flow Provo River waters into the Provo Reservoir canal under water rights evidenced by the Provo River Decree which are conveyed thereby for use by its stockholders in both Salt Lake and Utah Counties. (Ex. K, R.1481, 1482).

Defendant Salt Lake City stores water in and diverts water from Utah Lake into the Jordan River and the waters are conveyed thereby and rediverted therefrom near the Jordan Narrows under right

confirmed by the "Morse Decree" dated July 15, 1901 and supplemental decrees in exchange for the waters of the several Wasatch Front streams in Salt Lake County. (Ex. O, R.1487, 1491, 1492). Defendants Kennecott Copper Corporation and Utah Lake Distributing Company store water in and divert water from Utah Lake into the Jordan River and the waters are conveyed thereby and are rediverted therefrom at the Jordan Narrows and below for use by the stockholders of Utah Lake Distributing Company in both Utah and Salt Lake Counties and by Kennecott Copper Corporation in Salt Lake County. (Exs. J, L; R.1480,1481).

Defendant Central Utah Water Conservancy District is entitled to the project waters to be developed under the Bonneville Unit of the Central Utah Project to be constructed by the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation) which will include storage waters from Provo River at the proposed Jordanelle Reservoir upstream from Deer Creek Reservoir near Hailstone Junction in Wasatch County for municipal, industrial, power, irrigation and miscellaneous uses within the Central Utah Water Conservancy District by exchange for waters saved and/or stored in Utah Lake. (Ex. N, R.1486, 1487).

Provo City concedes that if it does not get the 16.5 second feet of water under paragraph 4(c) of the Provo River Decree it will go in the Provo River (A.70, R.1511) and the trial court acknowledged that defendants' water rights will be affected by its decision in this case. (A.70, R.1511, 1512).

B. Statement of Facts From Record of Civil No. 2888 Before This Court on Prior Appeal.

The fundamental issue on this appeal as on the prior appeal is the correct interpretation of paragraph 4(c) of the Provo River Decree which reads as follows:

"(c) 16.50 second feet, during the irrigation season of each and every year. Which water has heretofore been used for irrigation purposes by said City and for the generation of power by the Provo Ice & Cold Storage Company, a corporation, E. J. Ward & Sons Company, a corporation, Knight Woolen Mills a corporation, Smoot Investment Company a corporation, and Upton Hoover, W. E. Hoover, Webster Hoover and Frank Hoover as partners doing business under the name of Excelsior Roller Mills. And the said use for power purposes has been under license and grant from said Provo City and at such times and in such manner as has been made by mutual arrangements therefor."

The foundational facts extracted from the Record in Civil No. 2888 which led to paragraph 4(c) and which were before this Court on the prior appeal are summarized as follows:

Testimony extracted from the Record of Civil No. 2888 by Provo City established that the Factory Race headed below the Tail Race of the Provo Pressed Brick Company's plant running in a southerly direction. (R.161). It irrigated a number of blocks laying north of Center Street and west of the canal and all of one tier of lots west of the Factory Race, with the exception of one block, and lands in the First Ward pasture and to the west thereof south of Sixth South Street. (R.162). There were 74.7 acres above the Provo Woolen Mills and 129.4 acres below. (R.167). The Factory Race was utilized for power purposes by the Provo Ice & Cold Storage Co., the Hoover's Mills, the Knight Woolen Mill, Ward & Sons Mill and the Smoot Lumber Company's Mill. (R.162, 163).

Under the City Race there were 358.2 acres above the power plant (foundry) and 365.2 acres below. (R.167). Under the Tanner Race there were a total of 430.5 acres. (R.167). The total acreage from all canals was 1925 farm acres and 701.4 acres in platted lots of which 133.6 acres were farm lots. (R.167). The total acreage

outside of the platted portion of this city was 2,058.6 acres and the total acreage under the several canals was 2,760.1 acres. (R.168). Under the Factory Race where the power users were located, the distribution of water to the irrigators was on a fixed time from one season to the other, (R.172,174) which was different from the East Union Canal where it was all-night watering in the summer and no day watering whatever by the farmers. (R.172,173).

The sequence of the events which led to paragraph 4(c) of the Provo River Decree as extracted from the Record of Civil No. 2888 by defendants established that in May, 1917 during the pendency of the trial of Civil No. 2888, the outline of the proposed distribution of water to Provo City for the year 1917 into the Factory Race provided for 13.75 second feet from June 30 to July 20 and 14.00 second feet from July 20 to September 1, with no irrigation thereunder, in a category separate and apart from the irrigation of the Provo City acreage of 2058.6 acres and 300 acres in Provo City lots. (R.81, 82).

The decision of C. W. Morse, Judge Pro Tem, dated November 26, 1917 awarded to Provo City 13.75 second feet of water for power purposes during the irrigation season theretofore used by the mill rights upon the Factory Race and other races within the city (R.88) separate from its award to Provo City for power purposes during the non-irrigating season (R.88) and separate and apart from its award to Provo City of the waters for irrigation purposes for the Provo City 2,058.6 farm acres and 300 acres of town lots. (R.83,84-90 incl.). The Decision also fixed the basis of assessment to Provo City as a power user for its mill rights along the Factory Race. (R.89)

By stipulation in open court in Civil No. 2888 on September 4, 1918 between the Provo Reservoir Company and Provo City the foregoing 13.75 second feet was changed to 16.5 second feet and was there specifically identified as "the power right water" (R.91, 93). Mr. F. S. Richards, then attorney for Provo City (R.94) subsequently offered evidence to show that the 13.75 second feet would not turn the machinery of the mills and that 16.5 second feet was essential for that purpose in support of the above stipulation substituting the 16.5 second feet for the 13.75 second feet. (R.95-98 incl.).

During the post 1917 Decision proceedings, the trial court noted that its award of 50 or 57 acre (per second foot) duty was an abundant award (R.134, 135) and thereafter denied Provo City's Motion to reopen the case with reference to the duty of water because of its exceedingly generous allowance of water. (R.136, 137).

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