1976

Provo City v. Hubert C. Lambert et al : Brief of Plaintiff-Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action to review in its entirety, and not in part as the appellants have stated, the decision of the State Engineer relative to Provo City's right to water under paragraph 4(c) of the "Provo River Decree" of May 2, 1921. The general characterization by the appellants under this heading is erroneous.

DISPOSITION BY STATE ENGINEER

While this particular subdivision (Disposition by State

Engineer) is not prescribed for briefs by the Utah Rules of

Civil Procedure, the respondent has no objection to such discussion, except that the facts should be reported accurately. The corrected facts are:

1. In September, 1969, appellant Hugh A. McKellar, then Provo River Water Commissioner, unilaterally, ex parte, sua sponte and without authority, made the unprecedented determination that Provo City's right to 16.5 c.f.s. under the Morse Decree of May 2, 1921, was a non-consumptive right and, accordingly refused to deliver such water to Provo City.

2. Representatives of Provo City attempted to reason with Mr. McKellar, but their efforts were to no avail.

3. Mr. Richard Maxfield, then special counsel for Provo City, called the State Engineer's office and talked with Mr. Bryce Montgomery, who was acting State Engineer during the illness of Mr. Lambert. After reviewing the record, Mr. Montgomery wrote Mr. McKellar on September 19, 1969, and told him to redirect the 16.5 c.f.s. to Provo City. (Ex. 21).

4. Mr. McKellar notified Mr. Mendenhall, manager of the Provo Reservoir Water Users Company, of the decision. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Joseph Novak filed an objection with the State Engineer. This objection developed into a legalistic hearing involving the interpretation of paragraph 4(c) of the Decree.

5. On May 1, 1970, the State Engineer rendered his decision, holding that paragraph 4(c) of the Provo River

Decree was for non-consumptive power use only.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

In the first disposition before the Honorable Allen B. Sorenson, the matter was presented on motions for summary judgment made by each side. No testimony was taken. The defendants' motion for summary judgment was granted. On remand, the Trial Court found in favor of the plaintiff-respondent.

The balance of the appellants' chronology concerning the disposition in the lower court is substantially correct.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The respondent seeks to have the judgment of the lower court affirmed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The appellants commence their statement of fact by stating that they will "strive to comply with the time-honored rules of appellee (sic) review and state those facts in the light most favorable to the Amended Findings of Fact and Amended Judgment below". After such a lofty pronouncement of purpose, the appellants then proceed to ignore salient evidence and testimony and to tailor the facts to their liking. For that reason, the respondent must make the following and somewhat lengthy restatement of facts.

On August 7, 1972, this Court remanded the cause to the Trial Court with this language:

"It is therefore ordered that this matter be remanded to the District Court with the recommendation that the court refer the matter

to the State Engineer for a determination from the historical or other data, or from other investigation as to the use, if any, made of the water here in question." (R. 217A).

On September 22, 1972, the trial Court ordered the case referred to the State Engineer for "such determination as may be helpful in lieu (sic) of the decision of the Supreme Court." The Court obviously intended the word "light" instead of "lieu".

Mr. Hubert C. Lambert, the previous engineer died on March 5, 1973 and thereafter, on May 1, 1973, Mr. Dee C. Hansen was appointed State Engineer.

After some prodding by Provo City, Mr. Hansen, the State Engineer, conducted a hearing. The hearing took approximately a day and a half, the first day being January 8, 1975, and the second January 18, 1975. He thereafter rendered his report. That report is undated and unsigned but it was filed with the clerk of the court on June 18, 1975.

Provo City has the following observations, additions, and corrections to the appellants' Statement of Facts, taking the "facts" up in the order in which the appellants have set them forth:

A. General Statement re: Geographical Locations.

Provo City does not object to appellants' general statement of facts under this heading:

B. Statement of Facts From Record of Civil No.

2888 Before this Court on Prior Appeal.

The difficulty with stating the facts in this manner is that there was no record of testimony and evidence on the prior appeal. Further, by stating the so called facts this way, the appellants can be truthful to the extent of the "then" record, even though such "truth" is different than the facts considered by the trial court. It is essential, therefore, that the salient facts (those considered by Judge Tibbs) be considered along side the appellants' assumed facts from Judge Sorenson's abbreviated record.

Contrary to the appellants' assertion that "no one knows exactly how much acreage was irrigated by 4(c) water in 1921", it does appear that there were hundreds of acres irrigated by 4(c) water. For example, there were a number of blocks on both sides of the factory race, (R. 973), on the Third West diversion (R. 973), and blocks and open acreage south of Sixth South (Railroad Street) from Fifth West on the west to the arc made by the railroad track running east and circling to the southeast and from this west, north and east parameter south to Utah Lake, that were irrigated by 4(c) water. This area, however, excluded part of the First Ward Pasture, which had a separate water right under the Provo River Decree. The line to the south fluctuated because of the level of the lake; and sometimes hundreds of acres south of the meander line were amenable to irrigation (R. 967). The city engineer, Mr. Zirbes, calculated the number of acres amenable to irrigation in 1921 by use of the 4(c) water to the Utah Lake meander line to be not less

than 1407.87 acres. (R. 1270, Ex. 20). The total acreage irrigated by rights under 4(a) (b) and (c) was 4,758 acres. (R. 1270-1275, Ex. 20).

The interim decision of Judge Morse on November 26, 1917, is not material here for it was superseded by the decree of May 2, 1921. The asserted facts set forth on pages 11, 12 and 13 of the appellants' brief are simply not facts. They were merely 1917 pre-trial stipulations which were substantially changed by the Decree of 1921. Certainly, there were some similarities between the stipulations and the final decree but the appellants would be clairvoyant to be able to say they were incorporated as such, sans evidence and testimony, into the Provo River Decree.

C. Statement of Facts Found by State Engineer Pursuant to Referral from District Court.

Provo City protests this entire category of "facts" for a number of reasons. In the first place, it is an attempt to masquerade as facts erroneous conclusions of the State Engineer. It isn't his "facts" that were found and from which the appellants appeal, but rather those contained in the Findings of Fact of the trial judge. The Court, in its Findings, found the State Engineer's report to be erroneous in many particulars, among which were: the number of acres irrigated under the 4(c) right; the number of acres irrigated out of the factory race; and the dates the manufacturing mills stopped using the stream for power. (See Findings of Fact, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19,

20, 21, and 22).

The appellants prefer to ignore the evidence that is contrary to the State Engineer's Report. In particular, the court found all of the facts stated on page 13, 14 and 15 or appellants' brief under this heading, to be erroneous. In light of the fact that the engineer had this matter under investigation for nearly three years and conducted only a cursory hearing, it would seem pretentious to postulate that his conclusions concerning the "facts" make such conclusions "facts".

To quote "facts" which the court found to be erroneous and against the weight of the evidence is not a "Statement of Fact" no matter what title is attached.

The entire representation under this heading is contrary to the believable facts presented at trial and, therefore, should be ignored.

D. Statement of Facts from Evidentiary Hearing in District Court on the Use of the Water Here in Question.

Section 73-3-15, U.C.A. (1953), provides for a trial de novo in the district court to review decisions of the state engineer. If the appeal to the District Court gives the appellant a trial de novo, this subsection of appellant's "Statement of Facts" should be the only statement of facts to be considered.

Addressing ourselves to the facts before the Trial Court, the respondent would add the following:

Department and Provo City Engineer attempted to identify the number of acres irrigated by Provo City's 4(c) water. The calculation methods used were different. The State Engineer attempted, by the use of a 1937 Provo City map, to work backwards by identifying service ditches and then calculating the acreages to be served by such laterals. At best, his estimates were interpolations and speculations.

Contrasted to the State Engineer's technique, Provo City produced a variety of witnesses, to wit: Dean Wheadon, (R. 967), the transcript of Henry J. W. Goddard, George C. Swan, Thomas E. Thompson. T. F. Wentz, Oscar W. Thayre, (See Exhibit 2), Earl J. Stubbs, (R. 1005), Leon Stubbs, (R. 1048), Elmer M. Roberts, (R. 1054) Judge Maurice Harding (R. 1060), Robert S. Worwood, (R. 1114), John W. Goddard, (R. 1135), Grant S. Larsen (R. 1149) and Stanley A. Roberts, (R. 1151), all of whom testified from actual knowledge of the land irrigated by Provo City from the Factory Race. From the testimony of the above named witnesses, coupled with the testimony of Mr. Dean Wheadon, Director of Provo City's Water Department and the testimony of Mr. Jack Zirbes, Provo City Engineer, the evidence most favorable to the city was that 4(c) water was used to irrigate a minimum of 1,407.87 acres plus hundreds of acres of accretion ground when the lake was below compromise. (R. 1270, Ex. 18 and 20) (F. of F. 19 and 20). These facts are contrary to the appellants' assertion that the acreage irrigated by the Factory Race was not identified.

The Factory Race water was always used for irrigation. Before the last mill went off stream in February, 1931, the irrigation requirements of Provo City were sometimes fulfilled by putting the entire stream in other canals at night in order to supply power water from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Mondays through Fridays. (R. 1154). That same power water, when it passed the last mill, was utilized to water the acreage south of Sixth South, as generally described on pages 5 and 6 above. None of the water was wasted.

The fact is, further, that the above arrangement was not an exchange but rather an accommodation of the power needs by the owners of the irrigation water. (R. 1182, Ex. 9). The right of the mill owners was by license from Provo City, which did not own or operate one power plant on the Factory Race. The assertion by the appellants that the factory race water was only used for irrigation at night is untrue. (Appellants' brief, p. 13). The evidence clearly shows that all of the 4(c) water was used for irrigation, whether diverted in the City Race, the East Union Canal or sent down the Factory Race. Only in periods of low water was the night time and weekend accommodation utilized. These facts are contrary to the appellants' assertion that power water was exchanged for irrigation water.

The mills which used the Factory Race water for power purposes began to shut down in 1921 when E. J. Ward & Sons went off stream and continued to February, 1930, when Excelsior Roller Mills ceased to operate. (R. 1246).

In respect to Exhibits 14, 15(a) (b) and (c) the appellants' statements concerning what the graphs represent is generally correct except for a few vital particulars. These are:

1. The black line represents that portion of the water shown by the red line which was actually diverted into the Factory Race, vis a vis, Tanner Race. (Appellant's Brief, p. 19).

2. Whenever the total water available, (red line) was insufficient to meet Provo City's 4(a), 4(b) and 4(c) right, the distribution was made proportionately. (Ex. 14). By use of Exhibits 15(a), (b) and (c), one can see that Provo City always had a proportionate amount of 4(c) water in the total water diverted.

3. The hydrographic study, Exhibit 14, commences for the year 1930. By way of example, for the year 1930 it shows, commencing July 1, 1930, that the water master only put 5 c.f.s. down the Factory Race and on August 1st, he reduced it to 2 c.f.s. The stream was not used at all for power thereafter.

4. Every year recorded on Exhibit 14 shows that very little of the 4(c) water was put down the Factory Race for power purposes. (Black line).

5. The 4(c) water, although delivered as reflected on Exhibit 14, except for April, May and June of 1930, has thereafter, until August of 1969, been used exclusively for irrigation purposes.

Returning to the appellants' assertion that in 1937-1938 the total acreage under the Provo City canal system was 2,303.38 acres (R. 1381, 82), the respondent asserts that this alleged fact is based upon the State Engineer's attempted reconstruction of the city system. This conclusion was not a fact, and, if it were, it would be irrelevant and immaterial for, at best, it shows his mathematics projected on what he reconstructed the canal system to be in 1938. The map itself, Exhibit "E", did not show the canal system and he, the State Engineer, had to develop it by extrapolation. He admitted that he had to do it this way because he claimed that the earliest map he could obtain was a 1937 map. (It should be noted that Ex. 19 is a 1921 map of Provo.)

The appellants' statement that the Provo City canal system in 1937-1938 would serve 2,303.38 acres ignores believable evidence to the contrary. The State Engineer in his computations on Exhibit "E" left out hundreds of acres of land south of Sixth South which were generally shown to be irrigated on Provo City's Exhibit 3 and on Exhibit 18. (R. 967, 1263). The respondent's evidence demonstrated that there was substantially more acreage irrigated by the canal system in 1937-1938.

Because the amount of acreage irrigated under Provo City's canal system in 1938 was immaterial to the issues before the court, Provo City did not develop engineering data on that subject. There was substantial reason to dis-

believe the State Engineer's measurements based upon his own testimony. To attempt to establish this conclusion of the engineer as a fact is to mislead this Court as to the "facts" of this case.

The appellants on page 10, under their statement of facts, argue that, based on the Engineer's 1975 interpolated reconstruction by use of a 1937 city map converted to 1921, that the duty on 4(c) water would be 8.76 acres per acre foot. To the contrary, Provo City established by its engineer, Mr. Zirbes, that the duty for 4(c) water based on the minimum acreage to be watered, would be 85.3 acres per acre foot. (Ex. 20, R. 1275).

Facts that are material but which have not been presented by the appellants are:

This Court in its remand was concerned with the question of whether the 4(c) water was part of, or in addition to, the 4(a) and 4(b) water. All of the parties agree and have stipulated that the 4(c) water is in addition to the 4(a) and 4(b) rights. (R. 946).

Appellant Hugh H. McKellar was Provo River Water Commissioner in 1969. In 1971, he was appointed Superintendent of the principal appellant, Provo River Water Users Association, at twice his previous salary. (R. 869). His present employer was a principal beneficiary of his decision to take Provo City's water. (R. 875).

Mr. McKellar, unilaterally and without instruction from his superiors, interpreted the Provo River Decree and deter-

mined that the 4(c) right was a non-consumptive right and he, therefore, of his own initiative shut off the water. (R. 946, 947, 948). He did this notwithstanding the fact that all of his predecessors for forty-nine previous years had interpreted the Decree to the contrary. (R. 945).

Mr. T. F. Wentz was Provo River Commissioner from 1912 to 1954. (R. 919). He was a principal witness in the Provo River trial which lasted from 1912 to 1921 and resulted in the Provo River Decree of May 2, 1921. (R. 914). Mr. Wentz died in 1954 and was succeeded by Mr. Marion Clark who served from 1954 to 1958. Mr. Clark resigned and was followed by Mr. Wallace Wayman. Upon Mr. Wayman's death in 1968, he was succeeded by Mr. McKellar.

All of the Water Commissioners except Mr. McKellar recognized the 4(c) right as a consumptive right for irrigation and delivered the 4(c) water to Provo City accordingly. This was done for each year from 1921 through the irrigation season of 1969, a period a few months short of fifty years.

All of the persons who had personal knowledge of the right in 1921 are dead.

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